Town of Strafford Development Review Board
March 19, 2025, 7 PM.
Draft Minutes

Board Attendance: Martha Walke, Sean Lewis, Dan Ruml, Terry Garrison, and Bonnie Bergeron

In-person Attendees: Chris Boyle, Attorney at Law, attorney for the Fondren’s and Titus; Rob
Townshend, American Consulting Engineers, and Surveyors; Kate Bass; Paul Harwood; Rachel
Kendall; Meredith Kendall; Steve Wilbanks; Dennis Tatro; Kyle Perry; Toni Pippy; Stuart Crocker;
Beverly Bilsky; Michael Baker; Lori Mikusa

Zoom Attendees: Robert and Trudi Fondren; Linda Titus; Darren Marcy; Kelly Harman; Vasska
Fondren; Bob Bushnell; Lisa Bragg; John Anderson, Primmer Piper Eggleston & Cramer PC; Bob
and Jean Bushnell; Darren Marcy; Steve Marsh,

The meeting started at 7:03pm.

Martha moved the minutes be approved with the addition of Les Blomberg to the attendees; one
spelling error; and added that the oath was given by a raise of hands to all who wished to speak
during the hearing. Terry second, all approved.

Rachel and Meredith Kendall Site Plan and Conditional Use Application hearing continued at
7:06pm.

Sean swore in anyone who wished to speak.

Martha said the Board was not sent the application that was submitted to the State, which was
requested in last month’s meeting. Jon Anderson said he would send it. Martha asked Jon or Rachel
to explain in more detail the produce Rachel is producing on the farm and where, in regards to the
AOFB determination. The garden of vegetables is on Meredith’s property. Jessie Kendall, Rachel’s
brother, makes the syrup. It is a family business. Martha asked about the 42-year lease that Jessie
Kendall has on the trees on all but three acres of the property. Rachel noted that the thirteen acres
and trees on it are not part of Jessie’s lease. Jon noted the sap could be boiled elsewhere, in this case
by her brother, and Rachel can sell the syrup. Rachel submitted to the Board her Act 181 application
that she submitted to the State. Martha asked Rachel if she produced proof of income to the
government. Rachel noted that she does, and it is on her taxes. Terry said the lease for the entire
sugarbush is leased to Jessie, that ownership is not in question, it is the lease and who owns the
rights to the trees. Jon Anderson asked about the sugarbush lease and said that he would like to see a
copy. The Board will send him a copy. Martha asked if Rachel has a sugarhouse. Rachel only has a
proposed sugarhouse on the site plan, and she has been producing syrup in Jessie’s sugarhouse up to
this point.

Jon noted that an AOFB is just a use category, and she still needs her CU and SP applications.

Chris Boyle noted that the right to ownership of the maple trees does belong to Jessie Kendall. The
additional ten acres that Rachel added to her property is part of the lease and the sap belongs to
Jessie. The AOFB status gives you some framework if there is a farm. If it is not devoted primarily
to farming, then it is not an AOFB. Meredith’s land is cleatly all part of Jessie’s lease. The current
use application lists zero acres of land recorded as agricultural land. The $2,000 threshold of income
could be produced by a receipt from the sale of her maple syrup or produce. Chris asks the Board to



determine is the business doing the types of things the AOFB requires and how does a wedding
meet this requirement. The applicant needs to prove that they are currently producing and farming
to move forward.

Terry said he does not feel that he has enough information regarding the AOFB and requests that
Chris Boyle’s questions be addressed by the applicant before the Board makes a decision on AOFB
determination.

Terry noted that if the AOFB is taken off the table that he has other questions related to the CU
and Site Plan applications and would like to continue.

Martha asked Jon to comment on the size of Rachel’s business located in an area where it is
currently not allowed and how it affects the character of the area. Jon noted that he does not feel it
is a large business, and the applicant is in compliance with all the CU and Site Plan criteria. Martha
noted that two hundred plus people with music and cars can adversely affect the neighborhood.

Terry asked Jon for more information and details about the Inn; if the Fire Marshall is reviewing the
project; and if the board needs to review one inn or two. Jon answered that each building will have
four guest rooms, and he believes that a fire marshal is not required. Conditional approvals by the
Board could be given.

Martha asked Rob Townshend if there was a plan to create any kind of barrier to alleviate the noise
and lights from the parking lot across the street from the Fondren’s” house. He does not know of
any proposed plans.

Lori Mikusa noted that she lives down the hill from the applicants and said that when Brooke and
Hunter have company, she can hear the kids from her house and she, as a neighbor, is concerned
about the noise and the traffic.

Bob Bushnell is concerned about the dozen weddings during the summer months when people are
outdoors. The total number of weddings covers the majority of weekends, and this will be
disruptive to neighbors. The parking and number of cars they will have to deal with throughout the
summer changes the character of the neighborhood. The noise is very concerning as well and will

affect the peaceful enjoyment of his property.

Martha made the motion that the hearing be continued, and the Board went into deliberative
session. Dan seconded the motion, all approved.

Board came out of deliberations at 9:35pm

New Business:

Dan nominated, and Martha seconded, Terry Garrison as Chair and Sean Lewis as Vice Chair. All
approved.

Terry made the emotion to adjourn at 9:42pm, Martha seconded, all approved.

Respectfully submitted,

Bonnie Bergeron, Clerk



